

CHAPTER 149
HOUSE BILL No. 2595

AN ACT concerning school districts; relating to the provision of transportation; relating to school buildings; amending K.S.A. 2009 Supp. 31-150 and 72-1046b and repealing the existing sections.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:

Section 1. K.S.A. 2009 Supp. 72-1046b is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-1046b. (a) As used in this section:

(1) "School district" means a school district organized and operating under the laws of this state and no part of which is located in Johnson county, Sedgwick county, Shawnee county, or Wyandotte county.

~~(2) "Receiving school district" means a school district of nonresidence of a pupil.~~

~~(3) "Sending school district" means a school district of residence of a pupil.~~

(4) "Non-resident pupil" or "pupil" means a ~~person~~ *pupil* who is enrolled and in attendance at ~~school in a receiving school district~~ *a school located in a district in which such pupil is not a resident* and who (A) lives 10 or more miles from the attendance center the pupil would attend in ~~a sending school district~~ *the district in which the pupil resides* or (B) is a member of the family of a pupil meeting the condition prescribed in subpart (A).

(3) "Member of the family" means a brother or sister of the whole or half blood or by adoption, a stepbrother or stepsister, and a foster brother or foster sister.

~~(b) The parent or legal guardian of any pupil may apply to the board of education of a sending school district on or before July 15 of the current school year for authority for such pupil to be furnished or provided transportation to school from the pupil's residence and from school to the pupil's residence by the receiving school district. The application shall be made upon forms prescribed by the state board of education.~~

~~(c) Upon receiving any application under this section, the board of education of a sending school district shall inquire of the receiving school district whether it is willing to furnish or provide transportation for the pupil named in the application. If the board of education of the sending school district determines that the receiving school district is willing to furnish or provide transportation for the pupil and the board of education of the sending school district and the board of education of the receiving school district agree that the pupil is a pupil as defined in subsection (a)(4)(A) or (B), the board of the sending school district shall issue an order authorizing the furnishing or provision of transportation by the receiving school district for the affected pupil to school from the pupil's residence and to the pupil's residence from school.~~

~~(d) Pupils attending school in a receiving school district under the provisions of this section shall be counted as regularly enrolled in and attending school in the receiving school district for the purpose of computations, except computation of transportation weighting, under the school district finance and quality performance act and for the purposes of the statutory provisions contained in article 83 of chapter 72 of Kansas Statutes Annotated. No such pupil shall be charged for the costs of attendance at school in a receiving school district.~~

(b) *The board of education of any school district may allow any pupil who is not a resident of the district to enroll in and attend school in such district. The board of education of such district may furnish or provide transportation to any non-resident pupil who is enrolled in and attending school in the district pursuant to this section. If the district agrees to furnish or provide transportation to a non-resident pupil, such transportation shall be furnished or provided until the end of the school year. Prior to providing or furnishing transportation to a non-resident pupil, the district shall notify the board of education of the district in which the pupil resides that transportation will be furnished or provided.*

(c) *Pupils attending school in a school district in which the pupil does not reside pursuant to this section shall be counted as regularly enrolled in and attending school in the district where the pupil is enrolled for the purpose of computations, except computation of transportation weighting, under the school district finance and quality performance act and for the purposes of the statutory provisions contained in article 83 of chapter 72*

of the Kansas Statutes Annotated. Such non-resident pupil shall not be charged for the costs of attendance at school.

Sec. 2. K.S.A. 2009 Supp. 31-150 is hereby amended to read as follows: 31-150. (a) Except as otherwise provided in this section, the construction, *reconstruction or renovation* of school buildings shall comply with the requirements of the 2000 edition of the international building code as published by the international codes council. All electric wiring shall conform to requirements of the 1999 issue of the national electric code of the national fire protection association.

(b) The construction, *reconstruction or renovation* of mobile, modular, portable or relocatable school buildings shall conform to the requirements of the 2000 edition of the life safety code as published by the national fire protection association.

(c) The construction, *reconstruction or renovation* of all school buildings shall conform to the provisions for making buildings and facilities accessible to, and usable by, persons with a disability, as required by K.S.A. 58-1301 through 58-1311, and amendments thereto.

(d) No contract shall be let for the construction, *reconstruction or renovation* of any school building, and it shall be illegal to pay out any public funds for the construction, *reconstruction or renovation* of a school building ~~until~~ *unless* the plans for such building ~~shall~~ (1) bear the seal of an architect or a professional engineer licensed by the state board of technical professions of the state of Kansas certifying that the plans meet the applicable requirements of this act, ~~and (2) be submitted to the state board of education for approval as to compliance with such requirements.~~

(e) The provisions of subsections (c) and (d) ~~of this section~~ shall not apply to any building or structure operated or used for any purpose by, or located upon the land of any community college, ~~area vocational school, area vocational-technical school,~~ technical college, municipal university, institution under the governance of the state board of regents or other institutions of post secondary education as defined by K.S.A. 74-3249, and amendments thereto. Prior to construction ~~of any new building or remodeling of any existing building,~~ *reconstruction or renovation of a building or structure*, all community colleges, ~~area vocational schools, area vocational-technical schools,~~ technical colleges, any municipal university, institutions under the governance of the state board of regents or other institutions of post secondary education as defined by K.S.A. 74-3249, and amendments thereto, shall submit to the state fire marshal a code footprint for evaluation and approval of the fire/life safety features of such ~~buildings~~ *building or structure*.

(f) The relocation of school buildings to which the provisions of subsection (b) apply shall not be construed to be construction or reconstruction under the provisions, ~~or for the purposes,~~ of this section.

~~(g) The construction or reconstruction of a school building, whether funded by bonds or other moneys, in a school district where general obligation bonds were authorized to be issued by a vote of the electors in an election held on or before July 1, 2000, shall be governed by the provisions of this section that were in effect on January 1, 2004.~~

~~The provisions of this subsection shall expire on July 1, 2006.~~

~~(h)~~ (g) The state fire marshal shall adopt rules and regulations specifying those subsequent editions of the codes enumerated in subsections (a) and (b) which the state fire marshal has determined provide protection equivalent to those editions specified herein. Compliance with any subsequent edition specified by such rules and regulations shall be considered compliance with the edition of the code specified by this section.

Sec. 3. K.S.A. 2009 Supp. 31-150 and 72-1046b are hereby repealed.

Sec. 4. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in the statute book.